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PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002
(unaudited)

September 30,
2003

December 31,
2002

$ 14,810,359
89,836,418
5,232,506
5,414,082
1,856,297
1,120,936

$17,938,730
65,526,235
3,794,254
—
—
1,008,168

$118,270,598

$88,267,387

$

1,132,009
598,819
—
2,383,416
—
1,743,698
633,525

$ 1,363,833
745,754
937,231
2,861,336
286,882
965,582
499,151

6,491,467

7,659,769

152,088
94,191,165
17,435,878

135,200
78,308,754
2,163,664

111,779,131

80,607,618

$118,270,598

$88,267,387

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Finance receivables, net
Property and equipment, net
Deferred tax asset
Income tax receivable
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Income taxes payable
Accrued payroll and bonuses
Deferred tax liability
Long-term debt
Obligations under capital lease
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, par value $0.01, authorized shares, 2,000,000, issued and
outstanding shares - 0
Common stock, par value $0.01, authorized shares, 30,000,000, issued and
outstanding shares - 15,208,761 at September 30, 2003, and 13,520,000 at
December 31, 2002
Additional paid in capital
Retained earnings
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OPERATIONS
For the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2003 and 2002
(unaudited)

Three Months
Ended
September 30,
2003

Three Months
Ended
September 30,
2002

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2003

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2002

$21,388,674
784,411

$14,703,904
520,618

$59,624,690
2,266,998

$38,721,711
1,337,055

—

—

—

100,156

Total revenue
Operating expenses:
Compensation and employee services
Outside legal and other fees and
services
Communications
Rent and occupancy
Other operating expenses
Depreciation

22,173,085

15,224,522

61,891,688

40,158,922

7,369,517

5,507,580

21,441,422

15,719,635

3,885,920
702,739
317,300
392,872
383,071

2,197,040
540,158
208,712
323,877
242,616

9,979,781
2,003,116
872,260
1,321,832
1,054,253

5,438,622
1,469,611
571,159
999,448
676,238

Total operating expenses

13,051,419

9,019,983

36,672,664

24,874,713

Income from operations
Other income and (expense):
Interest income
Interest expense

9,121,666

6,204,539

25,219,024

15,284,209

Revenues:
Income recognized on finance receivables
Commissions
Net gain on cash sales of defaulted
consumer receivables

586
(83,989)

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income

—
(1,065,776)

1,699
(2,182,489)

9,038,263
3,509,070

5,138,763
—

25,004,609
9,732,395

13,103,419
—

$ 5,529,193

$ 5,138,763

$15,272,214

$13,103,419

Pro forma income taxes
Pro forma net income
Net income/Pro forma net income per common
share
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average number of shares outstanding
Basic
Diluted

28,811
(243,226)

$
$

0.36
0.35

15,148,978
15,751,532

1,986,387

5,065,566

$ 3,152,376

$ 8,037,853

$
$

0.32
0.27

10,000,000
11,496,385

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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$
$

1.07
0.97

14,311,587
15,697,825

$
$

0.80
0.70

10,000,000
11,489,580

PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2003 and 2002
(unaudited)

Operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by
operating activities:
Increase in equity from vested options and warrants
Tax benefit related to stock option exercise
Depreciation
Gain on sales of defaulted consumer receivables
Deferred income taxes
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Other assets
Accounts payable
Income taxes
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and bonuses

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2003

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2002

$ 15,272,214

$ 13,103,419

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Acquisition of finance receivables, net of buybacks
Collections applied to principal on finance receivables
Proceeds from sale of finance receivables, net of allowances
for returns
Net cash used in investing activities

285,163
439,738
—
31,650
186,640

(2,129,692)
(50,849,497)
26,539,314

(924,879)
(26,214,185)
19,167,807

—

756

(26,439,875)

(7,970,501)

(386,963)
586,000
—
975,000
(196,884)
(228,439)

—
—
(5,549,530)
500,000
(62,656)
(282,098)

748,714

(5,394,284)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

(3,128,371)
17,938,730

1,257,907
4,780,399

$ 14,810,359

$ 6,038,306

$

240,503

$ 2,093,814

362,813

38,896

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(112,768)
(231,824)
(2,793,528)
(146,935)
(477,920)

14,622,692

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Capital lease obligations incurred

—
—
676,238
(100,156)
—

22,562,790

Cash flows from financing activities:
Public offering costs
Proceeds from exercise of warrants
Distribution of capital
Proceeds from long-term debt
Payments on long-term debt
Payments on capital lease obligations

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

302,380
15,397,882
1,054,253
—
(5,700,964)

PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
1. Organization and Business:
Portfolio Recovery Associates, LLC (“PRA”) was formed March 20, 1996. Portfolio Recovery Associates, Inc. (“PRA Inc”) was formed in August
2002. On November 8, 2002, PRA Inc completed its initial public offering (“IPO”) of common stock. As a result, all of the membership units and
warrants of PRA were exchanged on a one to one basis for warrants and shares of a single class of common stock of PRA Inc. PRA Inc now
owns all outstanding membership units of PRA and PRA Receivables Management, LLC (d/b/a Anchor Receivables Management) (“Anchor”). PRA
owns all of the membership units of PRA III, LLC, a special purpose borrowing entity (“PRA III”), PRA Funding, LLC, whose name was changed
from PRA AG Funding, LLC in February 2003 (“PRA Funding”), and PRA Holding I, LLC, an entity established to hold real property (“PRA Holding
I”). PRA Inc, a Delaware corporation, and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”) purchases, collects and manages portfolios of defaulted
consumer receivables. The defaulted consumer receivables the Company collects are in substantially all cases either purchased from the credit
originator or are collected on behalf of clients on a commission fee basis. This is primarily accomplished by maintaining a staff of highly skilled
collectors whose purpose is to contact the customers and arrange payment of the debt. Secondarily, the Company has contracted with
independent attorneys to allow the Company to undertake legal action to satisfy the outstanding debt.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of PRA Inc, PRA, PRA Funding, PRA Holding I, Anchor and PRA III.
The accompanying unaudited financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission and, therefore, do not include all information and footnotes necessary for a fair
presentation of financial position, results of operations and cash flows in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. In the opinion of the Company, however, the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements contain all
adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair statement of the Company’s financial position as of
September 30, 2003, its results of operations for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2003 and 2002, and its cash flows for the
nine month periods ended September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The results of operations of the Company for the three and nine month
periods ended September 30, 2003 and 2002 may not be indicative of future results. These consolidated financial statements should be read in
conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, as
amended, filed for the year ended December 31, 2002.
2. Finance Receivables:
The Company accounts for its investment in finance receivables using the interest method under the guidance of Practice Bulletin 6, “Amortization
of Discounts on Certain Acquired Loans.” Static pools of relatively homogenous accounts are established. Once a static pool is established, the
receivable accounts in the pool are not changed. Each static pool is recorded at cost, and is accounted for as a single unit for the recognition of
income, principal payments and loss provision. Income on finance receivables is accrued monthly based on each static pool’s effective interest
rate. This interest rate is estimated based on the timing and amount of anticipated cash flows using the Company’s proprietary collection models.
Monthly cash flows greater than the interest accrual will reduce the carrying value of the static pool. Likewise, monthly cash flows that are less
than the monthly accrual will accrete the carrying balance. Each pool is reviewed monthly and compared to the Company’s models to ensure
complete amortization of the carrying balance at the end of each pool’s life.
In the event that cash collections would be inadequate to amortize the carrying balance, an impairment charge would be taken with a
corresponding write-off of the receivable balance. Accordingly, we do not maintain an allowance for credit losses.
The agreements to purchase the aforementioned receivables include general representations and warranties from the sellers covering account
holder death or bankruptcy, and accounts settled or disputed prior to sale. The representation and warranty period permitting the return of these
accounts from the Company to the seller is typically 90 to 180 days.
6

PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
Changes in finance receivables for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

Balance at beginning of period
Acquisitions of finance receivables, net of buybacks
Cash collections
Income recognized on finance receivables
Cash collections applied to principal
Cost of finance receivables sold, net of allowance for
returns

Three Months
Ended
September 30,
2003

Three Months
Ended
September 30,
2002

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2003

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2002

$ 86,688,557
11,978,443
(30,219,256)
21,388,674

$ 51,055,102
10,082,648
(20,708,532)
14,703,904

$ 65,526,235
50,849,497
(86,164,004)
59,624,690

$ 47,986,744
26,314,185
(57,889,518)
38,721,711

(8,830,582)

(6,004,628)

(26,539,314)

(19,167,807)

—

(600)

—

(600)

Balance at end of period

$ 89,836,418

$ 55,132,522

$ 89,836,418

$ 55,132,522

Estimated Remaining Collections (“ERC”)(1)

$269,925,459

$177,819,445

$269,925,459

$177,819,445

(1) Estimated Remaining Collections refers to the sum of all future projected cash collections on the Company’s owned portfolios. ERC is not a

balance sheet item, however, it is provided here for informational purposes.
At the time of acquisition, the life of each pool is generally set at between 60 and 72 months based upon the proprietary models of the Company.
As of September 30, 2003 the Company has $89,836,418 in finance receivables included in the Statement of Financial Position. Based upon
current projections, cash collections applied to principal will be as follows for the twelve months in the periods ending:
September 30,
September 30,
September 30,
September 30,
September 30,
September 30,

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009

$31,443,021
27,846,052
19,676,936
8,043,478
2,028,164
798,767

3. Revolving Lines of Credit:
On September 18, 2001, PRA III arranged with a commercial lender to provide financing under a revolving line of credit of up to $40 million. The
agreement was amended on December 18, 2002 to reduce the available credit to $25 million. The December 2002 amendment also allowed for a
reduction in the borrowing spread and an increase in the unused line fee. This line of credit is collateralized by all receivables, collections on
receivables and assets of PRA III along with a lien on Company assets excluding PRA Funding and certain other excluded assets. The agreement
expires September 15, 2005. Interest is variable based on LIBOR. No amount was outstanding at September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002.
Restrictive covenants under this agreement include:
•

restrictions on monthly borrowings in excess of $4 million per month and quarterly borrowings in excess of $10 million;

•

a maximum leverage ratio, defined as total liabilities less subordinated debt divided by tangible net worth plus subordinated debt, of not
greater than 4 to 1 and quarterly net income of at least $0.01, calculated on a consolidated basis;

•

a restriction on distributions in excess of 75% of annual net income;

•

compliance with certain special purpose vehicle and corporate separateness covenants; and
7

PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
•

restrictions on change of control.

As of September 30, 2003 the Company is in compliance with all of the covenants of this agreement.
In addition, PRA Funding maintains a $2.5 million revolving line of credit with RBC Centura Bank. This line of credit had an expiration date of July
2003; however, in September 2003, this facility was extended and now expires on September 28, 2004. The line of credit bears interest at a spread
over LIBOR. The terms of this agreement require that PRA maintain a current ratio of 1.6:1.0 or greater, the current ratio being defined to include
finance receivables as a current asset and to include the credit facility in place as of September 30, 2003 as a current liability. The agreement
further requires that PRA maintain a debt to tangible net worth ratio of 1.5:1.0 or less and a minimum balance sheet cash position at month end of
$2 million. Distributions are limited under the terms of the facility to 75% of net income. As of September 30, 2003, the Company is in full
compliance with these covenants. This $2.5 million facility had no amounts outstanding as of September 30, 2003 or December 31, 2002.
4.

Property and Equipment:

Property and equipment, at cost, consist of the following as of the dates indicated:

September 30,
2003

December 31,
2002

Software
Computer equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Equipment
Leasehold improvements
Building and improvements
Land
Less accumulated depreciation

$ 1,994,664
2,129,802
1,323,575
1,581,846
641,347
1,138,924
100,515
(3,678,167)

$ 1,431,938
1,435,795
942,178
1,037,372
343,329
1,136,762
100,515
(2,633,635)

Net property and equipment

$ 5,232,506

$ 3,794,254

5. Hedging Activity:
During 2001, the Company entered into an interest rate swap for the purpose of managing exposure to fluctuations in interest rates related to
variable rate financing. The interest rate swap effectively fixed the interest rate on $10 million of the Company’s outstanding debt. The swap
required payment or receipt of the difference between a fixed rate of 5.33% and a variable rate of interest based on 1-month LIBOR. The unrealized
gains and losses associated with the change in market value of the interest rate swap are recognized as other comprehensive income. This swap
transaction, which was to expire in May 2004, was paid in full and terminated in September 2002.
Expenses incurred related to the swap agreement were interest expenses of $616,954 and $792,047 for the three and nine months ending
September 30, 2002. The net interest payments are a component of “Interest Expense” on the income statement and a reduction of net income in
the cash flow statement.
6. Stock-Based Compensation:
The Company has a stock warrant plan and a stock option plan. Prior to 2002, the Company accounted for stock compensation issued under the
recognition and measurement provisions of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, and related Interpretations. No
stock-based employee compensation cost is reflected in pro forma net income for the nine months ended September 30, 2002. Effective
January 1, 2002, the Company
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PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
adopted the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123 (“SFAS 123”), “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”,
prospectively to all employee awards granted, modified, or settled after January 1, 2002. Therefore, the cost related to stock-based employee
compensation included in the determination of net income for 2002 is less than that which would have been recognized if the fair value based
method had been applied to all awards since the original effective date of SFAS 123. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and
earnings per share if the fair value based method had been applied to all outstanding and unvested awards in each period.

Net income/Pro forma net income:
As reported
Add: Stock-based employee
compensation expense included in
reported net income, net of related
tax effects
Less: Total stock based
compensation expense determined
under intrinsic value method for all
awards, net of related tax effects

Three Months
Ended
September 30,
2003

Three Months
Ended
September 30,
2002

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2003

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2002

$ 5,529,193

$ 3,152,376

$15,272,214

$ 8,037,853

72,068

—

187,413

—

(72,068)

(6,788)

(187,413)

(12,095)

Pro forma net income

$ 5,529,193

$ 3,145,588

$15,272,214

$ 8,025,758

Earnings per share:
Basic - as reported
Basic - pro forma
Diluted - as reported
Diluted - pro forma

$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$

0.36
0.36
0.35
0.35

0.32
0.31
0.27
0.27

1.07
1.07
0.97
0.97

0.80
0.80
0.70
0.70

Stock Warrants
The PRA management committee was authorized to issue warrants to partners, employees or vendors to purchase membership units. Generally,
warrants granted had a term between 5 and 7 years and vested within 3 years. Warrants had been issued at or above the fair market value on the
date of grant. Warrants vest and expire according to terms established at the grant date.
9

PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
The following summarizes all warrant related transactions from December 31, 1999 through September 30, 2003:

Warrants
Outstanding

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

December 31, 1999
Granted
Exercised
Cancelled

2,325,000
65,000
—
(230,000)

$ 4.17
4.20
—
4.20

December 31, 2000
Granted
Exercised
Cancelled

2,160,000
155,000
—
(120,000)

4.17
4.20
—
4.20

December 31, 2001
Granted
Exercised
Cancelled

2,195,000
50,000
(50,000)
(10,000)

4.17
10.00
4.20
4.20

December 31, 2002
Granted
Exercised
Cancelled

2,185,000
—
(1,991,000)
(51,500)

$ 4.30
—
4.17
9.72

September 30, 2003

142,500

$ 4.20

At September 30, 2003, the Company had 142,500 exercisable warrants outstanding. All were issued to employees of the Company. During the
nine months ended September 30, 2003, no warrants were issued. During the nine months ended September 30, 2002, 50,000 warrants were
issued to an employee of the Company.
The following information is as of September 30, 2003:

Warrants Outstanding

Exercise
Prices

$4.20
Total at September 30, 2003

Number
Outstanding

WeightedAverage
Remaining
Contractual
Life

Warrants Exercisable

WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price

WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price

Number
Exercisable

142,500

2.53

$ 4.20

142,500

$ 4.20

142,500

2.53

$ 4.20

142,500

$ 4.20

Had compensation cost for granted warrants been determined pursuant to SFAS 123, the Company’s net income would have decreased. Using a
fair-value (minimum value calculation), the following assumptions were used:

2002

Warrants issue year:
Expected life from vest date (in years):
Employees
Operating members
Risk-free interest rates
Volatility
Dividend yield

3.00
0.00
4.53%
N/A
N/A
10

2001

4.00
0.00
4.66%-4.77%
N/A
N/A

2000

0.00
5.00
6.30%
N/A
N/A

PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
The fair value model utilizes the risk-free interest rate at grant with an expected exercise date sometime in the future generally assuming an
exercise date in the first half of 2005. In addition, warrant valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the
expected exercise date and risk-free interest rates. Prior to the IPO, the Company’s warrants had characteristics significantly different from those
of traded warrants, and changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate. Based upon the above
assumptions, the weighted average fair value of employee warrants granted during the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $1.24,
$0.35, and $0.21, respectively.
Effective December 30, 1999, PRA’s management committee issued warrants to acquire 125,000 membership units to an affiliate of Angelo,
Gordon & Co. The warrants immediately vested and were exercisable at $3.60 per unit. As these warrants are not issued as compensation to an
employee or operating member of the Company, an expense of $0 and $12,801 was incurred and recognized during the nine months ended
September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The value of the warrants was calculated using the fair value approach as designated by SFAS 123,
which utilizes a comparison of the discounted value of the underlying units discounted using a risk-free interest rate at the date of grant. All
warrants issued to AG 1999 have been exercised and none remain outstanding as of September 30, 2003.
Effective August 18, 1999, PRA’s management committee issued warrants to acquire 200,000 membership units to SMR Research Corporation
(“SMR”). The warrants were to vest over a 60 month period and are exercisable at $4.20 per unit. The warrants vested as to 80,000 membership
units and the remaining 120,000 membership units were cancelled upon the termination of an agreement between the Company and SMR
Research Corporation. The value of the warrants was calculated using the intrinsic method and no expense was recognized on these warrants. The
fair value approach was then applied, as designated by SFAS 123, which utilizes a comparison of the discounted value of the underlying units
discounted using a risk-free interest rate at the date of grant. As a result, these warrants were shown to have a negative present value and as
such no expense has been recorded. All warrants issued to SMR have been exercised and none remain outstanding as of September 30, 2003.
Stock Options
The Company created the 2002 Stock Option Plan (the “Plan”) on November 7, 2002. Up to 2,000,000 shares of common stock may be issued
under this program. The Plan expires November 7, 2012. All options issued under the Plan vest ratably over 5 years. Granted options expire seven
years from grant date. Expiration dates range between November 7, 2009 and July 31, 2010. No grant of options to a single person can exceed
200,000 in a single year. As of September 30, 2003, 875,000 options have been granted under the Plan of which 22,075 have been cancelled.
These options are accounted for under SFAS 123 and all expense for 2003 and 2002 are included in earnings as a component of compensation.
The Company issued 55,000 options during the three months ended September 30, 2003.
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PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
The following summarizes all option related transactions from December 31, 2001 through September 30, 2003:

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Options
Outstanding

December 31, 2001
Granted
Exercised
Cancelled

—
820,000
—
(12,150)

$ —
13.06
—
13.00

December 31, 2002
Granted
Exercised
Cancelled

807,850
55,000
—
(9,925)

13.06
28.87
—
13.00

September 30, 2003

852,925

$14.01

The Company had total stock options outstanding of 852,925 at September 30, 2003, none of which were exercisable. All of the stock options
were issued to employees of the Company except for 20,000 which were issued to the board of directors.
The following information is as of September 30, 2003:

Options Outstanding

Exercise
Prices

$13.00
$16.16
$27.77
$28.98
Total at September 30, 2003

WeightedAverage
Remaining
Contractual
Life

Number
Outstanding

Options Exercisable

WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price

Number
Exercisable

WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price

782,925
15,000
50,000
5,000

6.11
6.14
6.84
6.79

$ 13.00
$ 16.16
$ 27.77
$ 28.98

—
—
—
—

$ 13.00
$ 16.16
$ 27.77
$ 28.98

852,925

6.16

$ 14.01

—

$

—

The Company utilizes the Black-Scholes option pricing model to calculate the value of the stock options when granted. This model was developed
to estimate the fair value of traded options, which have different characteristics than employee stock options. In addition, changes to the
subjective input assumptions can result in materially different fair market value estimates. Therefore, the Black-Scholes model may not
necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of employee stock options.

Options issue year:

Weighted average fair value of options
granted
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected dividend yield
Expected life (in years)
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2003

2002

$
5.84
15.70% - 15.73%
2.92% - 3.19%
0.00%
5.00

$ 2.73
15.70%
2.92%
0.00%
5.00

PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
Utilizing these assumptions, each employee stock option granted in 2002 is valued at $2.71 per share and each director stock option is valued at
$3.37 per share. For stock options issued to employees in 2003, the per share values range between $5.80 and $6.25.
Restricted Stock
Restricted stock shares are permitted to be issued as an incentive to attract new employees when the stock has traded for less than one year, as
is the case for PRA Inc. During the three months ended September 30, 2003, the Company issued 12,545 shares of restricted stock. The terms
are similar to the stock option plan where the shares are issued at or above market values and vest ratably over 5 years.
7. Commitments and Contingencies:
Employment Agreements:
The Company has employment agreements with all of its executive officers and with several members of its senior management group, the terms
of which expire on March 31, 2004 or December 31, 2005. Such agreements provide for base salary payments as well as bonuses which are
based on the attainment of specific management goals. Estimated remaining compensation under these agreements is approximately $2,509,543.
The agreements also contain confidentiality and non-compete provisions.
Leases:
The Company is party to various operating and capital leases with respect to its facilities and equipment. Please refer to the Company’s
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission for discussion of these leases. On June 27, 2003, the Company entered into a lease for an additional 25,000 square feet of
office space at its Norfolk, VA headquarters. The lease is for a term of 10 years, beginning on January 1, 2004, at an annualized rent of $447,000.
In addition, the Company amended its existing lease for its Norfolk, VA headquarters to extend the term of that lease an additional 90 months.
This lease now expires December 31, 2013. Beginning in 2004, annualized rental expense in conjunction with this lease will be $691,000.
Litigation:
The Company is from time to time subject to routine litigation incidental to its business. The Company believes that the results of any pending
legal proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition, results of operations or liquidity of the Company.
8. Income Taxes
Prior to November 8, 2002, the Company was organized as a limited liability company, taxed as a partnership, and as such was not subject to
federal or state income taxes. Immediately before the IPO, the Company was reorganized as a corporation and became subject to income taxes.
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PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
The income tax expense recognized for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2003 is composed of the following:

For the three months ended September 30, 2003:

Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense
Total income tax expense

Federal

State

Total

$ (8,207,248)
11,174,551

(1,484,374)
2,026,141

$ (9,691,622)
13,200,692

$ 2,967,303

For the nine months ended September 30, 2003:

Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense

$

Federal

$ 3,509,070

State

$ (3,174,793)
11,404,576

Total income tax expense

541,767

$ 8,229,783

Total

(532,621)
2,035,233

$ (3,707,414)
13,439,809

$1,502,612

$ 9,732,395

The Company also recognized a net deferred tax asset of $5,414,082 as of September 30, 2003 and a net deferred tax liability of $286,882 as of
December 31, 2002. The components of this net asset and liability are:

Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss - tax
FAS123 expense
Deferred compensation

September 30, 2003

December 31, 2002

$

$

Total deferred tax asset
Deferred tax liabilities:
Cost recovery
Depreciation
Prepaid expenses
Total deferred tax liability
Net deferred tax asset/(liability)

$

19,140,774
114,039
7,916

—
47,997
14,872

19,262,729

62,869

13,160,515
485,603
202,529

—
260,125
89,626

13,848,647

349,751

5,414,082

$

(286,882)

A valuation allowance has not provided at September 30, 2003 or December 31, 2002 since management believes it is more likely than not that
the deferred tax assets will be realized.
The Company presented pro forma tax information assuming it has been a taxable corporation since inception and assuming tax rates equal to the
rates that would have been in effect had it been required to report income tax expense in such years. A reconciliation of the Company’s statutory
tax rates to the effective tax rates for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2003 and the pro forma income tax expense for the three
and nine months ended September 30, 2002, consists of the following components:

For the Three
Months Ended
September 30,
2003

For the Three
Months Ended
September 30,
2002

For the Nine
Months Ended
September 30,
2003

For the Nine
Months Ended
September 30,
2002

Federal tax at statutory rates
State tax expense, net of federal benefit
Other

$ 3,162,774
352,149
(5,853)

$ 1,774,659
206,748
4,980

$ 8,751,613
976,914
3,868

$ 4,525,233
525,910
14,423

Total income tax expense

$ 3,509,070

$ 1,986,387

$ 9,732,395

$ 5,065,566
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
Cautionary Statements Pursuant to Safe Harbor Provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995:
This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws. These forward-looking statements involve risks,
uncertainties and assumptions that, if they never materialize or prove incorrect, could cause the results of the Company to differ materially from
those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. All statements, other than statements of historical fact, are forward-looking
statements, including statements regarding overall trends, gross margin trends, operating cost trends, liquidity and capital needs and other
statements of expectations, beliefs, future plans and strategies, anticipated events or trends, and similar expressions concerning matters that are
not historical facts. The risks, uncertainties and assumptions referred to above may include the following:
•

changes in the business practices of credit originators in terms of selling defaulted consumer receivables or outsourcing defaulted
consumer receivables to third-party contingent fee collection agencies;

•

changes in government regulations that affect the Company’s ability to collect sufficient amounts on its acquired or serviced
receivables;

•

the Company’s ability to employ and retain qualified employees, especially collection personnel;

•

changes in the credit or capital markets, which affect the Company’s ability to borrow money or raise capital to purchase or service
defaulted consumer receivables;

•

the degree and nature of the Company’s competition; and

•

the risk factors listed from time to time in the Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Results of Operations
The following table sets forth certain operating data as a percentage of total revenue for the periods indicated:

For the Three Months
Ended September 30,
2003
2002

For the Nine Months
Ended September 30,
2003
2002

96.5%
3.5%
0.0%

96.6%
3.4%
0.0%

96.3%
3.7%
0.0%

96.5%
3.3%
0.2%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

33.2%
17.5%
3.2%
1.4%
1.8%
1.7%

36.2%
14.4%
3.5%
1.4%
2.1%
1.6%

34.6%
16.1%
3.2%
1.4%
2.1%
1.7%

39.1%
13.5%
3.7%
1.4%
2.5%
1.7%

58.9%

59.2%

59.3%

61.9%

41.1%

40.8%

40.7%

38.1%

0.0%
-0.4%

0.0%
-7.0%

0.0%
-0.4%

0.0%
-5.4%

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

40.8%
15.8%

33.8%
0.0%

40.4%
15.7%

32.6%
0.0%

Net income

24.9%

33.8%

24.7%

32.6%

Revenues:
Income recognized on finance receivables
Commissions
Net gain on sales of defaulted consumer receivables
Total revenue
Operating expenses:
Compensation and employee services
Outside legal and other fees and services
Communications
Rent and occupancy
Other operating expenses
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Other income and (expense):
Interest income
Interest expense

(1)

Pro forma income taxes

13.0%

12.6%

Pro forma net income (1)

20.7%

20.0%

Until November 8, 2002, the Company was structured as a limited liability company. As a limited liability company the Company was not
subject to Federal or state corporate income taxes. For comparison purposes, the Company has presented pro forma net income for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2002, which reflects income taxes assuming the Company had been a corporation since the
time of its formation and assuming tax rates equal to the rates that would have been in effect had the Company been required to report tax
expense in such years.

The Company uses the following terminology throughout its reports. “Cash Receipts” refers to all collections of cash, regardless of the source.
“Cash Collections” refers to collections on the Company’s owned portfolios only, exclusive of commission income and sales of finance
receivables. “Cash Sales of Finance Receivables” refers to the sales of the Company’s owned portfolios. “Commissions” refers to fee income
generated from the Company’s wholly-owned contingent fee subsidiary.
Three Months Ended September 30, 2003 Compared To Three Months Ended September 30, 2002
Revenue
Total revenue was $22.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $7.0 million or 46.1% compared to total
revenue of $15.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2002.
Income Recognized on Finance Receivables
Income recognized on finance receivables was $21.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $6.7 million or
45.6% compared to income recognized on finance receivables of $14.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2002. The majority of the
increase was due to an increase in the Company’s cash collections on its owned defaulted consumer receivables to $30.2 million from
$20.7 million, an increase of 45.9%.
16

The Company’s amortization rate on owned portfolio for the three months ended September 30, 2003 was 29.2% while for the three months ended
September 30, 2002 it was 29.0%. During the three months ended September 30, 2003, the Company acquired defaulted consumer receivables
portfolios with an aggregate face value amount of $323.4 million at a cost of $11.8 million. During the three months ended September 30, 2002, the
Company acquired defaulted consumer receivable portfolios with an aggregate face value of $342.1 million at a cost of $10.1 million. The
Company’s relative cost basis of acquiring defaulted consumer receivable portfolios increased from 2.96% of face value for the three months
ended September 30, 2002 to 3.65% of face value for the three months ended September 30, 2003.
Commissions
Commissions were $784,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $263,000 or 50.5% compared to commissions of
$521,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2002. Commissions increased as a result of a growing inventory of accounts.
Net gain on cash sales of defaulted consumer receivables
Net gain on cash sales of defaulted consumer receivables were $0 for the three months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002.
Operating Expenses
Total operating expenses were $13.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $4.1 million or 45.6% compared to
total operating expenses of $9.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2002. Total operating expenses, including compensation and
employee services expenses, were 42.3% of cash receipts excluding sales for the three months ended September 30, 2003 compared with 42.5%
for the same period in 2002.
Compensation and Employee Services
Compensation and employee services expenses were $7.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $1.9 million
or 34.5% compared to compensation and employee services expenses of $5.5 million for the three months ended September 30, 2002.
Compensation and employee services expenses increased as total employees grew to 747 at September 30, 2003 from 568 at September 30,
2002. Compensation and employee services expenses as a percentage of cash receipts excluding sales decreased to 23.9% for the three months
ended September 30, 2003 from 25.9% of cash receipts excluding sales for the same period in 2002.
Outside Legal and Other Fees and Services
Outside legal and other fees and services expenses were $3.9 million for the three months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of
$1.7 million or 77.3% compared to outside legal and other fees and services expenses of $2.2 million for the three months ended September 30,
2002. The increase was attributable to the increased cash collections resulting from the increased number of accounts referred to independent
contingent fee attorneys. This increase is consistent with the growth the Company experienced in its portfolio of defaulted consumer receivables,
and a portfolio management strategy shift implemented in mid 2002. This strategy resulted in the Company referring to the legal suit process
previously unsuccessfully liquidated accounts that have an identified means of repayment but that are nearing their legal statute of limitations.
Communications
Communications expenses were $703,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $163,000 or 30.2% compared to
communications expenses of $540,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2002. The increase was attributable to growth in mailings and
higher telephone expenses incurred to collect on a greater number of defaulted consumer receivables owned and serviced. Mailings were
responsible for 41.2% of this increase, while the remaining 58.8% is attributable to higher telephone expenses.
17

Rent and Occupancy
Rent and occupancy expenses were $317,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $108,000 or 51.7% compared to
rent and occupancy expenses of $209,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2002. The increase was attributable to increased leased
space due to the opening of a call center in Hampton, Virginia, a storage facility, an off-site administrative and mail handling site and contractual
increases in annual rental rates. The Hampton call center accounted for $88,000 of the increase, the new storage facility accounted for $8,000 of
the increase and the administrative/mail site accounted for $3,000 of the increase. The remaining increase was attributable to contractual
increases in annual rental rates.
Other Operating Expenses
Other operating expenses were $393,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $69,000 or 21.3% compared to other
operating expenses of $324,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2002. The increase was due to increases in repairs and maintenance,
hiring and insurance expenses and offset in part by decreases in taxes, fees and licenses and miscellaneous expenses. Repairs and maintenance
expenses increased by $64,000, hiring expenses increased by $33,000, and insurance expenses increased by $51,000, taxes, fees and licenses
decreased by $86,000, and miscellaneous expenses increased by $7,000.
Depreciation
Depreciation expenses were $383,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $140,000 or 57.6% compared to
depreciation expenses of $243,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2002. The increase was attributable to continued capital
expenditures on equipment, software and computers related to the Company’s growth and systems upgrades. Of the increase in depreciation
expenses, 62.9% is the result of the March 2003 opening of its new Hampton office and an associated $1.2 million in equipment purchases. The
remaining increase of 37.1% was the result of system upgrades.
Interest Income
Interest income was $1,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $1,000 compared to interest income of $0 for the
three months ended September 30, 2002. This increase is the result of investing in overnight repo funds as compared to keeping cash in the
Company’s depository bank and earning fee credit offsets in 2002.
Interest Expense
Interest expense was $84,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2003, a decrease of $982,000 or 92.1% compared to interest
expense of $1,066,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2002. This decrease is primarily the result of the termination of the interest rate
swap agreement in September 2002 and having no outstanding debt on the revolving line of credit. The interest rate swap expense for the three
months ended September 30, 2002 was $617,000 and other debt related expenses for the same time period were $449,000.
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2003 Compared To Nine Months Ended September 30, 2002
Revenue
Total revenue was $61.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $21.7 million or 54.0% compared to total
revenue of $40.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2002.
Income Recognized on Finance Receivables
Income recognized on finance receivables was $59.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $20.9 million or
54.0% compared to income recognized on finance receivables of $38.7 million for the
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nine months ended September 30, 2002. The majority of the increase was due to an increase in the Company’s cash collections on its owned
defaulted consumer receivables to $86.2 million from $57.9 million, an increase of 48.9%. The Company’s amortization rate on owned portfolio for
the nine months ended September 30, 2003 was 30.8% while for the nine months ended September 30, 2002 it was 33.1%. During the nine
months ended September 30, 2003, the Company acquired defaulted consumer receivables portfolios with an aggregate face value amount of
$1,853.1 million at a cost of $50.3 million. During the nine months ended September 30, 2002, the Company acquired defaulted consumer
receivable portfolios with an aggregate face value of $930.1 million at a cost of $26.4 million. The Company’s relative cost basis of acquiring
defaulted consumer receivable portfolios decreased from 2.84% of face value for the nine months ended September 30, 2002 to 2.71% of face
value for the nine months ended September 30, 2003.
Commissions
Commissions were $2.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $930,000 or 71.5% compared to commissions
of $1.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2002. Commissions increased as a result of a growing inventory of accounts.
Net gain on cash sales of defaulted consumer receivables
Net gain on cash sales of defaulted consumer receivables were $0 for the nine months ended September 30, 2003, a decrease of $100,000
compared to net gain on cash sales of defaulted consumer receivables of $100,000 for nine months ended September 30, 2002. The Company
completed one small sale transaction in June 2002.
Operating Expenses
Total operating expenses were $36.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $11.8 million or 47.4% compared to
total operating expenses of $24.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2002. Total operating expenses, including compensation and
employee services expenses, were 41.1% of cash receipts excluding sales for the nine months ended September 30, 2003 compared with 42.1%
for the same period in 2002.
Compensation and Employee Services
Compensation and employee services expenses were $21.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $5.7 million
or 36.3% compared to compensation and employee services expenses of $15.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2002.
Compensation and employee services expenses increased as total employees grew to 747 at September 30, 2003 from 568 at September 30,
2002. Compensation and employee services expenses as a percentage of cash receipts excluding sales decreased to 24.2% for the nine months
ended September 30, 2003 from 26.5% of cash receipts excluding sales for the same period in 2002.
Outside Legal and Other Fees and Services
Outside legal and other fees and services expenses were $10.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of
$4.6 million or 85.2% compared to outside legal and other fees and services expenses of $5.4 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2002. The increase was attributable to the increased cash collections resulting from the increased number of accounts referred to independent
contingent fee attorneys. This increase is consistent with the growth the Company experienced in its portfolio of defaulted consumer receivables,
and a portfolio management strategy shift implemented in mid 2002. This strategy resulted in the Company referring to the legal suit process
previously unsuccessfully liquidated accounts that have an identified means of repayment but that are nearing their legal statute of limitations.
Communications
Communications expenses were $2.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $500,000 or 33.3% compared to
communications expenses of $1.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2002. The increase was attributable to growth in mailings and
higher telephone expenses incurred to collect on a
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greater number of defaulted consumer receivables owned and serviced. Mailings were responsible for 46.2% of this increase, while the remaining
53.8% is attributable to higher telephone expenses.
Rent and Occupancy
Rent and occupancy expenses were $872,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $301,000 or 52.7% compared to
rent and occupancy expenses of $571,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2002. The increase was attributable to increased leased
space due to the opening of a call center in Hampton, Virginia, a storage facility, an off-site administrative and mail handling site and contractual
increases in annual rental rates. The Hampton call center accounted for $205,000 of the increase, the new storage facility accounted for $24,000
of the increase and the administrative/mail site accounted for $19,000 of the increase. The remaining increase was attributable to contractual
increases in annual rental rates.
Other Operating Expenses
Other operating expenses were $1.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $300,000 or 30.0% compared to
other operating expenses of $1.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2002. The increase was due to changes in repairs and
maintenance, travel and meals, hiring, insurance and miscellaneous expenses. Repairs and maintenance increased by $87,000, travel and meals
increased by $35,000, hiring expenses increased by $60,000, insurance expenses increased by $149,000 and miscellaneous expenses decreased
by $31,000.
Depreciation
Depreciation expenses were $1,054,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $378,000 or 55.9% compared to
depreciation expenses of $676,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2002. The increase was attributable to growth and systems upgrades. Of
the increase in depreciation expenses, 48.1% is the result of the March 2003 opening of its new Hampton office and an associated $1.2 million in
equipment purchases. The remaining increase of 51.9% was the result of system upgrades.
Interest Income
Interest income was $29,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $27,000 or 1350.0% compared to interest income
of $2,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2002. This increase is the result of investing in short term federally tax-exempt Auction Rate
Certificates in 2003, as compared to keeping cash in the Company’s depository bank and earning fee credit offsets in 2002.
Interest Expense
Interest expense was $243,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2003, a decrease of $1,957,000 or 89.0% compared to interest
expense of $2.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2002. This decrease is primarily the result of the termination of the interest rate
swap agreement in September 2002 and having no outstanding debt on the revolving line of credit in 2003. The interest rate swap expense for the
nine months ended September 30, 2002 was $792,000 and other debt related expenses for the same time period were $1,408,000.
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Supplemental Performance Data
Owned Portfolio Performance:
The following table shows the Company’s portfolio buying activity by year, setting forth, among other things, the purchase price, actual cash
collections and estimated remaining cash collections as of September 30, 2003.
($ in thousands)

Estimated
Actual Cash Collections
Remaining
Purchase Period Purchase Price(1) Including Cash Sales
Collections(2)

1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002
2003

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

3,080
7,685
11,122
18,912
25,069
33,540
42,655
51,122

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

8,859
21,111
28,311
46,240
59,127
68,844
42,804
15,022

$
268
$
795
$
2,085
$
7,884
$ 20,119
$ 41,820
$ 81,660
$ 115,296

Total
Total Estimated
Estimated
Collections to
Collections(3) Purchase Price(4)

$
9,127
$ 21,906
$ 30,396
$ 54,124
$ 79,246
$ 110,664
$ 124,465
$ 130,318

296%
285%
273%
286%
316%
330%
292%
255%

(1)

Purchase price refers to the cash paid to a seller to acquire defaulted consumer receivables, plus certain capitalized expenses, less the
purchase price refunded by the seller due to the return of non-compliant accounts (also defined as buybacks). Non-compliant refers to the
contractual representations and warranties provided for in the purchase and sale contract between the seller and the Company. These
representations and warranties from the sellers generally cover account holders’ death or bankruptcy and accounts settled or disputed prior
to sale. The seller can replace or repurchase these accounts. The Company refers to repurchased accounts as buybacks.

(2)

Estimated remaining collections refers to the sum of all future projected cash collections on our owned portfolios.

(3)

Total estimated collections refers to the actual cash collections, including cash sales, plus estimated remaining collections.

(4)

Total estimated collections to purchase price refers to the total estimated collections divided by the purchase price.

When the Company acquires a portfolio of defaulted accounts, it generally does so with a forecast of future total estimated collections to
purchase price paid of no more than 2.4 to 2.6 times. Only after the portfolio has established probable and estimable performance in excess of that
projection will estimated remaining collections be increased. If actual cash collections are less than the original forecast, the Company moves
aggressively to lower estimated remaining collections to appropriate levels.
21

The following graph shows the Company’s purchase price in its owned portfolios by year beginning in 1996 and includes the year to date as of
September 30, 2003 acquisition amount. This purchase price number represents the cash paid to the seller to acquire defaulted consumer
receivables, plus certain capitalized expenses, less the purchase price refunded by the seller due to the return of non-compliant accounts.

The Company utilizes a long-term approach to collecting its owned pools of receivables. This approach has historically caused the Company to
realize significant cash collections and revenues from purchased pools of finance receivables years after they are originally acquired. As a result,
the Company has in the past been able to reduce its level of current period acquisitions without a corresponding negative current period impact on
cash collections and revenue.
The following table, which excludes any proceeds from cash sales of finance receivables, demonstrates the Company’s ability to realize
significant multi-year cash collection streams on its owned pools as of September 30, 2003.
Cash Collections By Year, By Year of Purchase
($ in thousands)

Purchase
Period

Purchase
Price

1996

1997

1998

Cash Collection Period
1999
2000

2001

496
1,829
3,948
9,598
19,478
28,833
15,072
—

2003

277
1,056
2,154
5,653
12,796
21,475
27,732
15,021

Total

1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002
2003

$

3,080
7,685
11,122
18,912
25,069
33,540
42,655
51,122

$548
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

$2,484
2,507
—
—
—
—
—
—

$ 1,890
5,215
3,776
—
—
—
—
—

$ 1,347
4,069
6,807
5,139
—
—
—
—

$ 1,025
3,347
6,398
13,069
6,894
—
—
—

$

$

$

$

Total

$193,185

$548

$4,991

$10,881

$17,362

$30,733

$53,148

$79,254

$86,164

$283,082
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730
2,630
5,152
12,090
19,498
13,047
—
—

2002

8,797
20,653
28,235
45,550
58,666
63,356
42,804
15,021

When the Company acquires a new pool of finance receivables, a 60 to 72 month projection of cash collections is created. The following chart
shows the Company’s historical cash collections (including cash sales of finance receivables) in relation to the aggregate of the total estimated
collection projections made at the time of each respective pool purchase.
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Owned Portfolio Personnel Performance:
The Company measures the productivity of each collector each month, breaking results into groups of similarly tenured collectors. The
following three tables display various productivity measures tracked by the Company.
Collector by Tenure

Collector FTE at:

12/31/00

One year + 1
Less than one year 2
Total 2

109
180
289

12/31/01

12/31/02

151
218
369

09/30/03

210
223
433

233
301
534

1 Calculated based on actual employees (collectors) with one year of service or more.
2 Calculated using total hours worked by all collectors, including those in training to produce a full time equivalent “FTE”.

Monthly Cash Collections by Tenure 1

Average performance YTD

One year + 2
Less than one year 3

12/31/00

12/31/01

12/31/02

9/30/03

$14,081
7,482

$15,205
7,740

$16,927
8,689

$18,425
8,494

1 Cash collection numbers include only accounts assigned to collectors. Significant cash collections do occur on “unassigned” accounts.
2 Calculated using average YTD monthly cash collections of all collectors with one year or more of tenure.
3 Calculated using weighted average YTD monthly cash collections of all collectors with less than one year of tenure, including those in training.

YTD Cash Collections per Hour Paid 1

Average performance YTD

Total cash collections
Non-legal cash collections

12/31/00

12/31/01

12/31/02

$64.37
$53.31

$77.20
$66.87

$96.37
$77.72

9/30/03

$110.77
$ 83.36

1 Cash collections (assigned and unassigned) divided by total hours paid ( including holiday, vacation and sick time) to all collectors (including

those in training).
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Cash collections have substantially exceeded revenue in each quarter since the Company’s formation. The following chart illustrates the
consistent excess of the Company’s cash collections on its owned portfolios over the income recognized on finance receivables on a quarterly
basis. The difference between cash collections and income recognized is referred to as Payments Applied to Principal. It is also referred to as
Amortization. This amortization is the portion of cash collections that is used to recover the cost of the portfolio investment represented on the
Statement of Financial Position.

(1)

Includes cash collections on finance receivables only. Excludes commission fees and cash proceeds from sales of defaulted consumer
receivables.

Seasonality
The Company depends on the ability to collect on its owned and serviced defaulted consumer receivables. Collections tend to be higher in the
first and second quarters of the year and lower in the third and fourth quarters of the year, due to consumer payment patterns in connection with
seasonal employment trends, income tax refunds, and holiday spending habits. Due to the Company’s historical quarterly increases in cash
collections, its growth has partially masked the impact of this seasonality.

(1)

Includes cash collections on finance receivables only. Excludes commission fees and cash proceeds from sales of defaulted consumer
receivables.
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The following table shows the changes in finance receivables, including the amounts paid to acquire new portfolios.

Three Months
Ended
September 30,
2003

Three Months
Ended
September 30,
2002

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2003

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2002

Balance at beginning of period
Acquisitions of finance receivables, net of
buybacks (1)
Cash collections applied to principal on finance
receivables (2)
Cost of finance receivables sold, net of allowance
for returns

$ 86,688,557

$ 51,055,102

$ 65,526,235

$ 47,986,744

11,978,443

10,082,648

50,849,497

26,314,185

(8,830,582)

(6,004,628)

(26,539,314)

(19,167,807)

Balance at end of period

$ 89,836,418

$ 55,132,522

$ 89,836,418

$ 55,132,522

Estimated Remaining Collections (“ERC”) (3)

$269,925,459

$177,819,445

$269,925,459

$177,819,445

—

(600)

—

(600)

(1)

Agreements to purchase receivables typically include general representations and warranties from the sellers covering account holders’
death or bankruptcy and accounts settled or disputed prior to sale. The seller can replace or repurchase these accounts. The Company
refers to repurchased accounts as buybacks.

(2)

Cash collections applied to principal (also referred to as amortization) on finance receivables consists of cash collections less income
recognized on finance receivables.

(3)

Estimated Remaining Collections refers to the sum of all future projected cash collections on the Company’s owned portfolios. ERC is not a
balance sheet item, however, it is provided here for informational purposes.

The following tables categorize the Company’s owned portfolios as of September 30, 2003 into the major asset types and account types
represented, respectively:

No. of
Accounts

Asset Type

Visa/MasterCard/Discover
Consumer Finance
Private Label Credit Cards
Auto Deficiency
Total:

%

Face Value of Defaulted
Consumer Receivables

Finance Receivables, net as of
September 30, 2003

%

%

1,018,637
1,735,920
1,073,405
46,639

26.3%
44.8%
27.7%
1.2%

$

3,780,209,048
1,581,002,568
1,745,615,640
294,980,546

51.1%
21.4%
23.5%
4.0%

$

42,398,246
9,850,903
35,151,269
2,435,999

47.2%
11.0%
39.1%
2.7%

3,874,601

100.0%

$

7,401,807,802

100.0%

$

89,836,418

100.0%

As shown in the following chart, as of September 30, 2003 a majority of the Company’s portfolios are secondary and tertiary accounts but it
purchases or services accounts at any point in the delinquency cycle.

Account Type

Fresh
Primary
Secondary
Tertiary
Other
Total:

No. of Accounts

%

Face Value of Defaulted
Consumer Receivables

%

Finance Receivables, net as of
September 30, 2003

%

148,398
467,142
1,268,781
1,778,551
211,729

3.8%
12.1%
32.7%
45.9%
5.5%

$

518,792,324
1,725,238,479
2,701,924,616
1,608,073,609
847,778,773

7.0%
23.3%
36.5%
21.7%
11.5%

$

6,807,832
25,151,813
45,813,193
9,096,866
2,966,713

7.6%
28.0%
51.0%
10.1%
3.3%

3,874,601

100.0%

$

7,401,807,802

100.0%

$

89,836,418

100.0%
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The Company also reviews the geographic distribution of accounts within a portfolio because it has found that certain states have more debtorfriendly laws than others and, therefore, are less desirable from a collectibility perspective. In addition, economic factors and bankruptcy trends
vary regionally and are factored into the Company’s maximum purchase price equation.
As the following chart illustrates, as of September 30, 2003 the Company’s overall portfolio of defaulted consumer receivables is generally
balanced geographically.

Geographic Distribution

Texas
California
Florida
New York
Pennsylvania
North Carolina
New Jersey
Illinois
Ohio
Georgia
Massachusetts
Michigan
Missouri
South Carolina
Arizona
Virginia
Tennessee
Maryland
Other
Total:

(1)

No. of Accounts

%

Face Value of Defaulted
Consumer Receivables

1,211,013
315,027
229,486
185,261
105,498
85,580
71,711
85,049
83,765
72,161
69,342
67,956
176,375
42,677
45,482
51,386
49,484
42,718
884,630

31%
8%
6%
4%
3%
2%
2%
2%
2%
2%
2%
2%
5%
1%
1%
1%
1%
1%
23%

$

1,143,722,056
818,495,488
670,024,554
593,664,542
281,467,035
230,517,713
219,582,495
207,783,336
203,029,210
194,958,737
182,248,528
171,237,713
159,809,392
136,452,468
125,491,084
124,323,724
123,570,550
120,163,174
1,695,266,001

3,874,601

100%

$

7,401,807,802

%

15%
11%
9%
8%
4%
3%
3%
3%
3%
2%
2%
2%
2%
2%
2%
2%
2%
2%
22%(1)
100%

Each state included in “Other” represents under 2% of the face value of total defaulted consumer receivables.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Historically, the Company’s primary sources of cash have been cash flows from operations, bank borrowings, and equity offerings. Cash has
been used for acquisitions of finance receivables, repayments of bank borrowings, purchases of property and equipment, and working capital to
support the Company’s growth.
The Company believes that funds generated from operations, together with existing cash and available borrowings under its credit agreement
will be sufficient to finance its current operations, planned capital expenditure requirements, and internal growth at least through the next twelve
months. However, the Company could require additional debt or equity financing if it were to make any other significant acquisitions requiring cash
during that period.
Cash generated from operations is dependent upon the Company’s ability to collect on its defaulted consumer receivables. Many factors,
including the economy and the Company’s ability to hire and retain qualified collectors and managers, are essential to its ability to generate cash
flows. Fluctuations in these factors that cause a negative impact on the Company’s business could have a material impact on its expected future
cash flows.
The Company’s operating activities provided cash of $22.6 million and $14.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. In these periods, cash from operations was generated primarily from net income earned through cash collections, commissions
received and gains on cash sales of defaulted consumer receivables for the period which increased from $13.1 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2002 to $15.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2003.
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The Company’s investing activities used cash of $26.4 million and $8.0 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Cash used in investing activities is primarily driven by acquisitions of defaulted consumer receivables, net of cash collections applied
to principal on finance receivables.
The Company’s financing activities provided cash of $749,000 and used cash of $5.4 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2003
and 2002, respectively. Cash used in financing activities is primarily driven by distributions of capital and payments on long term debt and capital
lease obligations. During 2003, the Company completed a financing arrangement with its main depository institution to finance equipment
purchases at its new location in Hampton, VA.
Cash paid for interest expenses was $241,000 and $2.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The
majority of interest expenses were paid for lines of credit used to finance acquisitions of defaulted consumer receivable portfolios, capital lease
obligations and other long-term debt. In addition in 2002, the interest rate swap agreement was paid in full in September for $542,000.
PRA III, LLC, our wholly owned subsidiary, maintains a $25.0 million revolving line of credit with Westside Funding Corporation (“Westside”)
pursuant to an agreement entered into on September 18, 2001 and amended on December 18, 2002. The Company, excluding PRA Funding, as
well as Anchor and PRA Holding I, which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company are guarantors to this agreement. The credit facility bears
interest at a spread over LIBOR and extends through September 15, 2005. The agreement provides for:
•

restrictions on monthly borrowings in excess of $4 million per month and quarterly borrowings in excess of $10 million;

•

a maximum leverage ratio, defined as total liabilities less subordinated debt divided by tangible net worth plus subordinated debt, of not
greater than 4.0 to 1.0 and quarterly net income of at least $0.01, calculated on a consolidated basis;

•

a restriction on distributions in excess of 75% of the Company’s net income for any year;

•

compliance with certain special purpose vehicle and corporate separateness covenants; and

•

restrictions on change of control.

The facility had no amounts outstanding at September 30, 2003.
In addition, PRA Funding maintains a $2.5 million revolving line of credit, pursuant to an agreement entered into with RBC Centura Bank on
June 30, 2002. The credit facility, bearing interest at a spread over LIBOR, which was due to expire in July, 2003, was extended in September,
2003 and now expires on September 28, 2004. The agreement provides:
•

that the Company maintain a current ratio of 1.6 to 1.0 (the current ratio being defined to include finance receivables as a current asset
and to include the outstanding balance of the credit facility with Westside as a current liability);

•

that the Company maintain a debt to tangible net worth ratio of not more than 1.5 to 1.0;

•

for a minimum balance sheet cash position at month end of $2 million; and

•

a restriction on distributions by the Company to 75% of net income.

This $2.5 million facility had no amounts outstanding at September 30, 2003. In addition, on February 20, 2003, the name of PRA AG Funding,
LLC was changed to PRA Funding, LLC. No changes were made with regards to the terms of the facility agreement.
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As of September 30, 2003 there are four loans outstanding. On July 20, 2000, PRA Holding I, entered into a credit facility with Bank of
America, N.A., for a $550,000 loan, for the purpose of purchasing a building and land in Hutchinson, Kansas. The loan bears interest at a variable
rate based on LIBOR and consists of monthly principal payments for 60 months and a final installment of unpaid principal and accrued interest
payable on July 21, 2005. On February 9, 2001, the Company entered into a commercial loan agreement with Bank of America, N.A. in the amount
of $107,000 in order to purchase equipment for its Norfolk, Virginia location. This loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 7.9% and matures on
February 1, 2006. On February 20, 2002, PRA Holding I entered into an additional arrangement with Bank of America, N.A. for a $500,000
commercial loan in order to finance construction of a parking lot at the Company’s Norfolk, Virginia location. This loan bears interest at a fixed rate
of 6.47% and matures on September 1, 2007. On May 1, 2003, the Company entered into a commercial loan agreement with RBC Centura Bank in
the amount of $975,000 to finance equipment purchases for its Hampton, Virginia location. This loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 4.25% and
matures on May 1, 2008.
Contractual Obligations
Obligations of the Company that exist as of September 30, 2003 are as follows:

Payments due by period

Total

Less
than 1
year

1-3
years

3-5
years

Long-Term Debt
Capital Lease Obligations
Operating Leases

$ 1,925,244
692,059
14,709,996

$ 430,442
299,626
1,361,292

$1,043,207
260,664
2,960,973

$ 451,595
131,769
3,043,474

$

Total

$17,327,299

$2,091,360

$4,264,844

$3,626,838

$7,344,257

Contractual Obligations

More
than 5
years

—
—
7,344,257

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities. FIN No. 46 is an interpretation of ARB No. 51 and addresses consolidation by business enterprises of variable interest entities (“VIEs”).
This interpretation is based on the theory that an enterprise controlling another entity through interests other than voting interests should
consolidate the controlled entity. Business enterprises are required under the provisions of this interpretation to identify VIEs, based on specified
characteristics, and then determine whether they should be consolidated. An enterprise that holds a majority of the variable interests is considered
the primary beneficiary, the enterprise that should consolidate the VIE. The primary beneficiary of a VIE is also required to include various
disclosures in interim and annual financial statements. Additionally, an enterprise that holds a significant variable interest in a VIE, but that is not
the primary beneficiary, is also required to make certain disclosures. This interpretation is effective for all enterprises with variable interest in VIEs
created after January 31, 2003. A public entity with variable interests in a VIE created before February 1, 2003, is required to apply the provisions
of this interpretation to that entity by the end of the first interim or annual reporting period beginning after December 15, 2003. The adoption of this
interpretation is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or the results of operations.
In October 2003, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants issued Statement of Position (“SOP”) 03-03, “Accounting for Loans or
Certain Securities Acquired in a Transfer.” This SOP proposes guidance on accounting for differences between contractual and expected cash
flows from an investors initial investment in loans or debt securities acquired in a transfer if those differences are attributable, at least in part, to
credit quality. This SOP is currently under review by the Financial Accounting Standards Board. If this SOP becomes effective, it will have an
effective date for companies whose fiscal years end on or after December 15, 2004. Management is in the process of evaluating this statement’s
impact on the Company.
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Critical Accounting Policy
The Company utilizes the interest method under guidance provided by Practice Bulletin 6 to determine income recognized on finance
receivables. Under this method, each static pool of receivables it acquires is statistically modeled to determine its projected cash flows. A yield is
then established which, when applied to the outstanding balance of the receivables, results in the recognition of income at a constant yield relative
to the remaining balance in the pool. Each pool is analyzed monthly to assess the actual performance to that expected by the model. If
differences are noted, the yield is adjusted prospectively to reflect the estimate of cash flows.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk.
The Company’s exposure to market risk relates to interest rate risk with its variable rate credit line. The Company terminated its only
derivative financial instrument to manage or reduce market risk in September 2002. As of September 30, 2003, the Company had no variable rate
debt outstanding on its revolving credit lines. The Company did have variable rate debt outstanding on its long-term debt collateralized by the
Kansas real estate. A 10% change in future interest rates on the variable rate credit line would not lead to a material decrease in future earnings
assuming all other factors remained constant.
Item 4. Controls and Procedures
The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the
Company’s Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including
its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and
evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and
operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management necessarily was required to apply
its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.
Within 90 days prior to the date of this report, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the
Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14. Based on the foregoing, the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective in timely alerting the
Company’s management to material information relating to the Company required to be included in the Company’s Exchange Act reports.
There have been no significant changes in the Company’s internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect the internal
controls subsequent to the date the Company completed its evaluation.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K.
(a)

(b)

Exhibits.
10.22

Second Amendment to Business Loan Agreement, dated September 5, 2003, by and between PRA
Funding, LLC and RBC Centura Bank.

10.23

First Lease Amendment to Riverside Commerce Center Office Lease, dated June 27, 2003, by and
between Riverside Crossing, L.C. and Portfolio Recovery Associates, Inc.

10.24

Fourth Lease Amendment to Riverside Commerce Center Office Lease, dated February 12, 1999, by
and between Riverside Crossing, L.C. and Portfolio Recovery Associates, Inc.

31.1

Section 302 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

32.1

Section 906 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

Reports on Form 8-K.
Filed October 27, 2003, issuance of a quarterly earnings press release for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2003.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Act, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.
PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, INC. (Registrant)
Date: October 28, 2003

By: /s/ Steven D. Fredrickson
Steven D. Fredrickson
Chief Executive Officer, President and
Chairman of the Board of Directors
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: October 28, 2003

By: /s/ Kevin P. Stevenson
Kevin P. Stevenson
Chief Financial Officer, Executive Vice President,
Treasurer and Assistant Secretary
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
33

Exhibit 10.22
CHANGE IN TERMS AGREEMENT

Borrower:

PRA Funding, LLC
120 Corporate Boulevard, Suite 100
Norfolk, VA 23502

Principal Amount: $2,500,000.00

Lender:

RBC CENTURA BANK
Twin Oaks
Lending Service Center
6700 Lake Wright Dr, Ste #400
Norfolk, VA 23502

Initial Rate: 4.115%

Date of Agreement: September 5, 2003

DESCRIPTION OF EXISTING INDEBTEDNESS.
Customer No. 2671883 Note No. 101 Draw No. 001
This change in Terms Agreement modifies Note dated June 28, 2002, between PRA Funding, LLC (Borrower) and RBC Centura Bank (Lender).
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE IN TERMS.
Extend maturity date to September 28 2004.
PROMISE TO PAY. PRA Funding, LLC (“BORROWER”) promises to pay to RBC CENTURA BANK (“Lender”), or order, in lawful money of
the United States of America, the principal amount of Two Million Five Hundred Thousand & 00/100 Dollars ($2,500,000.00) or so much as
may be outstanding, together with interest on the unpaid outstanding principal balance of each advance. Interest shall be calculated
from the date of each advance until repayment of each advance. The interest rate will not increase above 25.000%.
PAYMENT. Borrower will pay this loan in one payment of all outstanding principal plus all accrued unpaid interest on September 28,
2004. In addition, Borrower will pay regular monthly payments of all accrued unpaid interest due as of each payment date, beginning
October 1, 2003, with all subsequent interest payments to be due on the same day of each month after that. Unless otherwise agreed or
required by applicable law, payments will be applied first to any accrued unpaid interest; then to principal; then to any unpaid collection
costs; and then to any late charges. Interest on this Agreement is computed on a 365/360 simple interest basis; that is, by applying the
ratio of the annual interest rate over a year of 360 days, multiplied by the outstanding principal balance, multiplied by the actual number
of days the principal balance is outstanding. Borrower will pay Lender at Lender’s address shown above or at such other place as
Lender may designate in writing.
VARIABLE INTEREST RATE. The interest rate on this Agreement is subject to change from time to time based on changes in an independent
index which is the LIBOR Base Rate (the “Index”). The Index is not necessarily the lowest rate charged by Lender on its loans. If the Index
becomes unavailable during the term of this loan, Lender may designate a substitute index after notice to Borrower. Lender will tell Borrower the
current Index rate upon Borrower’s request. The interest rate change will not occur more often than each. The “LIBOR Base Rate: is the London
Interbank Offer Rate for U.S. dollars for a term of one month which appears on the Telerato Page 3750, Bloomberg Professional screen BBAM (or
any generally recognized successor method or means of publication) as of 11:00 a.m., London time, two (2) London business days prior to the day
on which the rate will become effective. The rate will initially become effective on the date of the Note as shown on the face of the Note.
Thereafter, the rate will change and a new rate will become effective on each succeeding banking day. If for any reason, the London Interbank
Offer Rate is not available, the “LIBOR Base Rate” shall mean the rate per annum which banks charge each other in a market comparable to
England’s Eurodollar market on short-term money in U.S. dollars for an amount substantially equivalent to the principal amount due under this
Note, as determined at 11:00 A.M., London time, two (2) London Business days prior to the day on which the rate will become effective, as
determined in Bank’s sole discretion. Bank determination of each interest rate shall be conclusive, absent manifest error. Borrower understands
that Lender may make loans based on other rates as well. The index currently is 1.115% per annum. The interest rate to be applied to the
unpaid principal balance of the Note will be a rate of 3.000 percentage points over the Index, resulting in an initial rate of 4.115% per
annum. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the variable interest rate or rates provided for in the Note will be subject to the following
maximum rate. NOTICE: Under no circumstances will the interest rate on the Note be more than (except for any higher default rate shown below
the lesser of 25.000% per annum or the maximum rate allowable by applicable law.
PREPAYMENT. Borrower may pay without penalty all or a portion of the amount owed earlier than it is due. Early payments will not, unless agreed
to by Lender in writing, relieve Borrower of Borrower’s obligation to continue to make payments of accrued unpaid interest. Rather, early payments
will reduce the principal balance due. Borrower agrees not to send Lender payments marked “paid in full”, “without recourse”, or similar language. If
Borrower sends such a payment, Lender may accept it without losing any of Lender’s rights under this Agreement, and Borrower will remain
obligated to pay any further amount owed to Lender. All written communications concerning disputed amounts, including any check or other
payment instruments that indicates that the payment constitutes “payment in full” of the amount owed or that is tendered with other conditions or
limitations or as full satisfaction of a disputed amount must be mailed or delivered to: RBC CENTURA BANK, Twin Oaks, Lending Service Center,
5700 Lake Wright Dr, Ste #400, Norfolk, VA 23502.
LATE CHARGE. If a payment is 15 days or more late, Borrower will be charged 5.000% of the unpaid portion of the regularly scheduled
payment.
INTEREST AFTER DEFAULT. Upon default, including failure to pay upon final maturity, Lender at its option, may, if permitted under applicable
law, increase the variable interest rate on this Agreement to 18.000% per annum. The interest rate will not exceed the maximum rate permitted by
applicable law.
DEFAULT. Each of the following shall constitute an Event or Default under this Agreement:

Payment Default. Borrower fails to make any payment when due under this Agreement:
Other Defaults. Borrower fails to comply with or to perform any other term, obligation, covenant or condition contained in this Agreement or in
any of the Related Documents or to comply with or to perform any term, obligation, covenant or condition contained in any other agreement
between Lender and Borrower.
Default in Favor of Third Parties. Borrower defaults under any loan, extension of credit, security agreement, purchase or sales agreement,
or any other agreement, in favor of any other creditor or person that may materially affect any of Borrower’s property or Borrower’s ability to
perform Borrower’s obligations under this Agreement or any of the Related Documents.
False Statements. Any warranty, representation or statement made or furnished to Lender by Borrower or on Borrower’s behalf under this
Agreement or the Related Documents is false or misleading in any material respect, either now or at the time made or furnished or becomes
false or misleading at any time thereafter.
Death or Insolvency. The death of Borrower or the dissolution or termination of Borrower’s existence as a going business, or a trustee or
receiver is appointed for Borrower or for all or a substantial portion of the assets of Borrower, or Borrower makes a general assignment for the
benefit of Borrower’s creditors, or Borrower files for bankruptcy, or an involuntary bankruptcy petition is filed against Borrower and such
involuntary petition remains undismissed for sixty (60) days.
Creditor of Forfeiture Proceedings. Commencement of foreclosure or forfeiture proceedings, whether by judicial proceeding, self-help,
repossession or any other method, by any creditor of Borrower or by any governmental agency against any collateral securing the
Indebtedness. This includes a garnishment of any of Borrower’s accounts, including deposit accounts, with Lender. However, this Event of
Default shall not apply if there is a good faith dispute by Borrower as to the validity or reasonableness of the claim which is the basis of the
creditor or forfeiture proceeding and if Borrower gives Lender written notice of the creditor or forfeiture proceeding and deposits with Lender
monies or a surety bond for the creditor or forfeiture proceeding, in an amount determined by Lender, in its sole discretion, as being an
adequate reserve or bond for the dispute.
Events Affecting Guarantor. Any of the preceding events occurs with respect to any Guarantor of any of the Indebtedness or any Guarantor
dies or becomes incompetent, or revokes or disputes the validity of, or liability, under any Guaranty of the Indebtedness evidenced by this
Note. In the event of a death, Lender, at its option, may, but shall not be required to, permit the Guarantor’s estate to assume unconditionally
the obligations arising under the guaranty in a manner satisfactory to Lender, and, in doing so, cure any Event of Default.
Adverse Change. A material adverse change occurs in Borrower’s financial condition, or Lender believes the prospect of payment or
performance of the Indebtedness is impaired.
Insecurity. Lender in good faith believes itself insecure.
Cure Provisions. If any default, other than a default in payments is curable and if Borrower has not been given a notice of a breach of the
same provision of this Agreement within the preceding twelve (12) months, it may be cured (and no event of default will have occurred) if
Borrower, after receiving written notice from Lender demanding cure of such default: (1) cures the default within fifteen (15) days; or (2) if the
cure requires more than fifteen (15) days, immediately initiates stops which Lender deems in Lender’s sole discretion to be sufficient to cure
the default and thereafter continues and completes all reasonable and necessary steps sufficient to produce compliance as soon as
reasonably practical.
LENDER’S RIGHTS. Upon default, Lender may declare the entire unpaid principal balance on this Agreement and all accrued unpaid interest,
together with all other applicable fees, costs and charges, if any, immediately due and payable, and then Borrower will pay that amount.
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ATTORNEYS’ FEES; EXPENSES. Subject to any limits under applicable law, upon default, Borrower agrees to pay Lender’s attorneys’ fees and
all of Lender’s other collection expenses, whether or not there is a lawsuit, including without limitation legal expenses for bankruptcy proceedings.
GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement will be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with federal law and the laws of the
Commonwealth of Virginia. This Agreement has been accepted by Lender in the Commonwealth of Virginia.
CHOICE OF VENUE. If there is a lawsuit, Borrower agrees upon Lender’s request to submit to the jurisdiction of the applicable courts for the City
of Norfolk, Commonwealth of Virginia.
DISHONORED ITEM FEE. Borrower will pay a fee to Lender of $25.00. If Borrower makes a payment of Borrower’s loan and the check or
preauthorized charge with which Borrower pays is later dishonored.
RIGHT OF SETOFF. To the extent permitted by applicable law, Lender reserves a right of setoff in all Borrower’s accounts with Lender (whether
checking, savings, or some other account). This includes all accounts Borrower holds jointly with someone else and all accounts Borrower may
open in the future. However, this does not include any IRA or Keogh accounts, or any trust accounts for which setoff would be prohibited by law.
Borrower authorizes Lender, to the extent permitted by applicable law, to charge or setoff all sums owing on the debt against any and all such
accounts, and, at Lender’s option, to administratively freeze all such accounts to allow Lender to protect Lender’s charge and setoff rights provided
in this paragraph.
COLLATERAL. Collateral securing other loans with Lender may also secure this loan. To the extent collateral previously has been given to Lender
by any person which may secure this Indebtedness, whether directly or indirectly, it is specifically agreed that, to the extent prohibited by law, all
such collateral consisting of household goods will not secure this Indebtedness. In addition, if any collateral requires the giving of a right of
rescission under Truth in Lending for this Indebtedness, such collateral also will not secure this Indebtedness unless and until all required notices
of that right have been given.
LINE OF CREDIT. This Agreement evidences a revolving line of credit. Advances under this Agreement, as well as directions for payment from
Borrower’s accounts, may be requested orally or in writing by Borrower or by an authorized person. Lender may, but need not, require that all oral
requests be confirmed in writing. Borrower agrees to be liable for all sums either: (A) advanced in accordance with the instructions of an authorized
person or (B) credited to any of Borrower’s accounts with Lender. The unpaid principal balance owing on this Agreement at any time may be
evidenced by endorsements on this Agreement or by Lender’s internal records, including daily computer print-outs. Lender will have no obligation
to advance funds under this Agreement if: (A) Borrower or any guarantor is in default under the terms of this Agreement or any agreement that
Borrower or any guarantor has with Lender, including any agreement made in connection with the signing of the Agreement; (B) Borrower or any
guarantor ceases doing business or is insolvent; (C) any guarantor seeks, claims or otherwise attempts to limit, modify or revoke such guarantor’s
guarantee of this Agreement or any other loan with Lender; (D) Borrower has applied funds provided pursuant to this Agreement for purposes other
than those authorized by Lender; or (E) Lender in good faith believes itself insecure.
CONTINUING VALIDITY. Except as expressly changed by this Agreement, the terms of the original obligation or obligations, including all
agreements evidenced or securing the obligation(s), remain unchanged and in full force and effect. Consent by Lender to this Agreement does not
waive Lender’s right to strict performance of the obligation(s) as changed, nor obligate Lender to make any future change in terms. Nothing in this
Agreement will constitute a satisfaction of the obligation(s). It is the intention of Lender to retain as liable parties all makers and endorsers of the
original obligation(s), including accommodation parties, unless a party is expressly released by Lender in writing. Any maker or endorser, including
accommodation makers, will not be released by virtue of this Agreement. If any person who signed the original obligation does not sign this
Agreement below, then all persons signing below acknowledge that this Agreement is given conditionally, based on the representation to Lender
that the non-signing party consents to the changes and provisions of this Agreement or otherwise will not be released by it. This waiver applies not
only to any initial extension, modification or release, but also to all such subsequent actions.
DESCRIPTION OF PRINCIPAL AMOUNT. The Principal Amount stated above refers to the principal amount of this loan, and does not reflect the
outstanding principal balance as of the date of this Change in Terms of Agreement.
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. Subject to any limitations stated in this Agreement on transfer of Borrower’s interest, this Agreement shall be
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties, their heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns. If ownership of the Collateral
becomes vested in a person other than Borrower, Lender, without notice to Borrower, may deal with Borrower’s successors with reference to this
Agreement and the Indebtedness by way of forbearance or extension without releasing Borrower from the obligations of this Agreement or liability
under the Indebtedness.
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. Lender may delay or forgo enforcing any of its rights or remedies under this Agreement without losing them.
Borrower and any other person who signs, guarantees or endorses this Agreement, to the extent allowed by law, waive presentment, demand for
payment, and notice of dishonor. Upon any change in the terms of this Agreement, and unless otherwise expressly stated in writing, no party who
signs this Agreement, whether as maker, guarantor, accommodation maker or endorser, shall be released from liability. All such parties agree that
Lender may renew or extend (repeatedly and for any length of time) this loan or release any party or guarantor or collateral; or Impair, fall to realize
upon or perfect Lender’s security interest in the collateral; and take any other action deemed necessary by Lender without the consent of or notice
to anyone. All such parties also agree that Lender may modify this loan without the consent of or notice to anyone other than the party with whom
the modification is made.
CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE
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PRIOR TO SINGING THIS AGREEMENT, BORROWER READ AND UNDERSTOOD ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT,
INCLUDING THE VARIABLE INTEREST RATE PROVISIONS. BORROWER AGREES TO THE TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT.
THIS AGREEMENT IS GIVEN UNDER SEAL AND IT IS INTENDED THAT THIS AGREEMENT IS AND SHALL CONSTITUTE AND HAVE THE
EFFECT OF A SEALED INSTRUMENT ACCORDING TO LAW.
CIT SIGNER:
PRA FUNDING, LLC
PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, LLC, of PRA Funding, LLC
By:

/s/ Kevin P. Stevenson
Kevin P. Stevenson, Manager/Sr Vice President of Portfolio
Recovery Associates, LLC
(Seal)

PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, LLC
By:

/s/ Kevin P. Stevenson
Kevin P. Stevenson, Manager/Sr Vice President of Portfolio
Recovery Associates, LLC
(Seal)

PRA HOLDING I, LLC
PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, LLC, Member of PRA Holding 1, LLC
By:

/s/ Kevin P. Stevenson
Kevin P. Stevenson, Manager/Sr Vice President of Portfolio
Recovery Associates, LLC
(Seal)

PRA RECEIVABLES MANAGEMENT, LLC
PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, LLC, Member of PRA Receivables Management, LLC
By:

/s/ Kevin P. Stevenson
Kevin P. Stevenson, Manager/Sr Vice President of Portfolio
Recovery Associates, LLC
(Seal)

PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, INC.
By:

/s/ Kevin P. Stevenson
Kevin P. Stevenson, Senior/Sr Vice President of Portfolio
Recovery Associates, LLC

(Seal)

Exhibit 10.23
FIRST LEASE AMENDMENT
THIS FIRST LEASE AMENDMENT is made as of October 1, 2003, by and between Riverside Crossing, L.C., a Virginia limited liability company
(“Lease”), and Portfolio Recovery Associates, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Lessee”).
RECITALS
A. By Office Lease dated June 27, 2003 (the “Lease”), Lessor leased to Portfolio Recovery Associates, LLC Suite 100 consisting of 25,000
rentable square feet (the “Premises”) in a building commonly known as Riverside Commerce Center II, 140 Corporate Boulevard, Norfolk, VA
23502 (the “Building”), as more particularly described in said Lease.
B. The Lessee’s name was inadvertently misstated in the Lease; the correct name is Portfolio Recovery Associates, Inc., a Delaware corporation.
C. Lessor and Lessee desire to modify the terms and conditions of the Lease to correct the misstatement.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein contained and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Lessor and Lessee hereby agree as follows:
1. Lessor and Lessee hereby amend the Lease to correctly identify the Lessee. All references in the Lease to Portfolio Recovery Associates,
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company shall be to Portfolio Recovery Associates, Inc., a Delaware corporation.
2. Portfolio Recovery Associates, LLC executes the First Lease Amendment to acknowledge its consent to the terms hereof and to waive any
and all rights it may have under the Lease.
3. All other terms and conditions of the Lease are hereby ratified and shall remain in full force and effect. In the event of a conflict between this
First Lease Amendment and the Lease, this First Lease Amendment shall prevail.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed and delivered this agreement as of the date first written above.
LESSOR:

RIVERSIDE CROSSING, L.C.,
a Virginia limited liability company
By:
Its:

Robinson Developmant Group Inc.
Manager

By:
Its:

/s/ Anthony W. Smith
Anthony W. Smith
Senior Vice President

Date:
LESSEE:

PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, INC.,
a Delaware corporation
By:

/s/ Steve D. Fredrickson

Name:

Steve D. Fredrickson

Its:

President

Date:

10-2-2003

PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, LLC,
a Delaware corporation limited liability company
By:

/s/ Steve D. Fredrickson

Name:

Steve D. Fredrickson

Its:

President

Date:

10-2-2003
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Exhibit 10.24
FOURTH LEASE AMENDMENT
THIS FOURTH LEASE AMENDMENT is made as of October 1, 2003, by and between Riverside Commerce Center, L.C., a Virginia limited liability
company (“Lessor”) and Portfolio Recovery Associates, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Lessee”).
RECITALS
A.

By One-Story Office Lease dated February 12, 1999 (the “Lease”), Riverside Investors, L.C. leased to Portfolio Recovery Associates, LLC
Suite 100 consisting of 35,179 rentable square feet (the “Premises”) in a building commonly known as Riverside Commerce Center, 120
Corporate Boulevard, Norfolk, VA 23502 (the “Building”), as more particularly described in said Lease.

B.

By First Lease Amendment dated April 27, 1999, Riverside Investors, L.C. and Portfolio Recovery Associates, LLC modified the Building
address and Lessor’s Services.

C.

Riverside Commerce Center, L.C., a Virginia limited liability company became successor in interest to Riverside Investors, L.C., a Virginia
limited liability company.

D.

By Second Lease Amendment dated September 29, 2000, Portfolio Recovery Associates, LLC leased from Lessor an additional 4,503
rentable square feet (the “Expansion Premises”) for a total of 39,682 rentable square feet (the “Total Promises”).

E.

Portfolio Recovery Associates, Inc., a Delaware corporation became successor in interest to Portfolio Recovery Associates, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company as Lessee under the Lease.

F.

By Third Lease Amendment dated June 27, 2003, Lessor and Portfolio Recovery Associates, LLC extended the term of the Lease for ninety
(90) months to expire December 31, 2013 (the “Renewal Term”).

G.

The Lessee’s name was inadvertently misstated in the Third Lease Amendment; the correct name is Portfolio Recovery Associates, Inc., a
Delaware corporation.

H.

Lessor and Lessee desire to modify the terms and conditions of the Lease to correct the misstatement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein contained and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Lessor and Lessee hereby agree as Follows:
1.

Lessor and Lessee hereby amend the Lease to correctly identify the Lessee. All references in the Lease to Portfolio Recovery Associates,
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company shall be to Portfolio Recovery Associates, Inc., a Delaware corporation.

2.

Portfolio Recovery Associates, LLC executes this Fourth Lease Amendment to acknowledge its consent to the terms hereof and to waive
any and all rights it may have under the Lease.
1

3.

All other terms and conditions of the Lease are hereby ratified and shall remain in full force and effect. In the event of a conflict between this
Fourth Lease Amendment, the Lease and any prior amendments, this Fourth Lease Amendment shall prevail.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed and delivered this agreement as of the date first written above.
LESSOR:

RIVERSIDE COMMERCE CENTER, L.C.,
a Virginia limited liability company
By: Robinson Development Group, Inc.
Its: Manager
By: /s/ ANTHONY W. SMITH
Anthony W. Smith
Its: Senior Vice President

LESSEE:

PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, INC.,
a Delaware corporation
By: /s/ STEVEN D. FREDRICKSON
Name: Steven D. Fredrickson
Its: President
PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company
By: /s/ STEVEN D. FREDRICKSON
Name: Steven D. Fredrickson
Its: President
2

Exhibit 31.1
I, Steven D. Fredrickson, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, INC.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

Reserved;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: October 28, 2003

By: /s/ Steven D. Fredrickson
Steven D. Fredrickson
Chief Executive Officer, President and
Chairman of the Board of Directors
(Principal Executive Officer)

I, Kevin P. Stevenson, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES, INC.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

Reserved;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: October 28, 2003

By: /s/ Kevin P. Stevenson
Kevin P. Stevenson
Chief Financial Officer, Executive Vice President,
Treasurer and Assistant Secretary
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report of Portfolio Recovery Associates, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending
September 30, 2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Steven D. Fredrickson, Chief
Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the Board of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the
Company.
Date: October 28, 2003

By: /s/ Steven D. Fredrickson
Steven D. Fredrickson
Chief Executive Officer, President and
Chairman of the Board of Directors
(Principal Executive Officer)
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Portfolio Recovery Associates, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending
September 30, 2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Kevin P. Stevenson, Chief
Financial Officer, Senior Vice President, Treasurer and Assistant Secretary of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the
Company.
Date: October 28, 2003

By: /s/ Kevin P. Stevenson
Kevin P. Stevenson
Chief Financial Officer, Executive Vice President,
Treasurer and Assistant Secretary
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

